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Through extensive architectural and historical research, the factual
development of Kingston Hall is much clearer than expected for an eighteenth-
century house. During the past half-century historians have tried to determine
an exact date for the construction of Kingston Hall, and estimations have
ranged through the first half of the eighteenth century. However, additional
new information indicates that Kingston Hall was built during the last two
decades of the eighteenth century by Thomas King.

Similar to other '"telescope" dwellings, this three-part brick house
was accomplished in stages. Construction was begun during the late years
of the American Revolution, for Thomas King was assessed in 1783 for,
"A new dwelling house with two rooms, a hall and entry below, part of wood-
work unfinished." Fifteen years later Thomas King's plantation was described
a second time by the federal assessors,

1 Dwelling House built of brick 40 by 34 feet, two
story high, 7 windows 5% feet by 3% feet, 10 windows
4 feet 8 inches by 2% feet, | Kitchen built of
brick 24 feet square, two story high, | Dairy or
Milk house 14 feet square, | Smoke house 11 feet

9 inches square, 1 Stable 35 feet by 26 feet, |
Carriage house 20 feet by 16 feet, | very old Hen
house 20 feet by 15 feet.

This second, more complete description locates the surrounding
outbuildings, most notably the two-story brick kitchen, built at the
same time as the house or between the span of the two assessments. Lastly,
the single-story colonnade, not mentioned in the assessment, was evidently
erected after 1798 to connect the main house with the domestic services.

Kingston Hall is architecturally significant for several other
reasons. In addition to being a key example of the colonnaded type
plantation house, Kingston Hall displays the earliest known local use of
a Palladian-style projecting pavilion capped by a decorated pediment.
Inside, the most important original woodwork is located in the entry and the
old "hall." A turned baluster stair rises in the "entry", and the "hall"
is fitted with floor to ceiling raised paneling. The "hall" is the only
fully paneled room to survive in Somerset County. Equally noteworthy
features include the remnants of a wood pin roof over the front pavilion
and early finishes in the old kitchen. The conical roofed brick ice
house is a rare outbuilding and one of a small collection of circular
farm structures in Maryland.

Kingston Hall stands on a tract of land known as "Conclusion.” which
was comprised of three separate tracts called '"Straights," "Johnson's"
and "Everden's Lot." These three tracts were consolidated under a resurvey
initiated by Robert King II in 1728/9. Totalling 1,500 acres, the
"Conclusion" lands were specifically mentioned in Robert King's will of
1755,




1 give and devise unto my grandson Thomas King

and to his heirs and assigns for ever, all my lands
situate lying and being on the south side of Great
Annemessex River and head thereof where his
deceased father first settled.

Thomas King occupied the "Conclusion" tract through the remainder
of the eighteenth century, and after his death the property passed to his
only child, Elizabeth Barnes King, who married Colonel Henry James Carroll.
James and Elizabeth Carroll lived in the house through the early nineteenth
century, and after Henry's death in 1818, their son, Thomas King Carroll,
acquired control of the plantation. Thomas King Carroll held several
prominent county and state offices including a one-year term as Governor
of Maryland (1830-1831). Carroll began his political career as a delegate
(1816-1817), and then became a judge of the Levy Court (1825-1826).
Between 1826 and 1829 Carroll resided over the Orphans Court. furing the
Carrolls ownership of Kingston Hall, their daughter, Anna Ella Carroll
(1815-1894) was born.

The Annemessex River plantation did not remain in the Carroll family
much longer, for a suit was filed in Somerset Court against Thomas King
Carroll in an effort to retrieve accumulated debts. A court appointed
sheriff, Samuel G. Holbrook, sold Kingston Hall to John Upshur Dennis in
September of 1837 (GH 9/210). With the death of John U. Dennis in 1851,
the estate passed to his son, George Robertson Dennis (1822-1882), a
prominent politician who served in the State House of Delegates, the
State Senate, and finally the United States Senate.

Following the death of George R. Dennis, Kingston Hall was transferred
in a court settlement to Alice J. Wood (OTB 34/371). Subsequent owners
have included Harry T. and Vera B. Phoebus (BLB 116/31), Charlton and
Virginia Gunter (BLB 162/173) and several others. The current owners
purchased Kingston Hall in 1975.
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) Exceiciizns 37 Good O Foir [ Deteriorated [J Ruins
(Check One)

O Unexposed
(Check One)

T Altered {J Unoltered 3 Moved X Originol Site

CR:ZZ THZ PRESENT - -ND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSIC AL APPEARANCE

zcx Hall, a Gzorgian style awelling, is located
or = iiz= from Kingston on the west side of Marvland
Rc.te ©E€7. ZIt is two siories plus an attic, three bayvs
wiZe Bv twe I zep and is connectaé bv a che-story bkrick
hyvohen to a —two-siory plus lof: brick kitchen wing. The
centrzl bay -2 the south side of the main block forms a
projecting pzivilion surmounted by a triangular pedizznt
centered in - Dich is a small oval window. The central
dcorway is frramed by fluted pilasters and a triancular
peiimsnt supz-orted by carved brackets at the corners in
a ninsteenth century style. The door has six octagonal
pznels. The <cornice on the pediment has a row of block
mc3illions at-ove a Greek fret. The cornice trim alon
the rooci and roof pediment is identicle. The Flemish bond
b;ickwork is painted white. Above each windcw, six over
six lights, 2.5 a white wood trapezoidal panel scored

tc simulate z:Dove. Between the first and sz=cond stories

hree row brick belt course, also in Flemish bond.
e hag a brick iatertable.
cZners have removed ninetesanth century additions
=.all that existed at least through the 1930's
4 by Eenry Chandler rorman in Early Manor
10 f Marvland {Easten, Maryland: the
‘T so>uthern elevation had a two-
s ti facaZe and dormers on
upola existed in thz center

£. The cupolaz had pilasters at

a ming window which extended
to the cornice. The four-sided roof curved to a finial
at the center of the cupola. The north facade had a pedi-
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mented porch at the central doors supported by pvaired,
aen DOY
sguezre viers.

Cn one «ast end there is evidence in the coloration

oi the brickwork that an addition has been removed at
soma time. In addition to the belt between the first two
stories there is another three course bzlt above the
second story on :the gable ends. There are two small
windcws in the gable.

Cn the north side is a small hooded porch over the
center door (twentieth century addition). The firg:
stor: Wwiniosws have twelive over twelive lig@ts an@ th?
second story, Six over eix. ibove zach window in this
side is a brick sczmoental arch. Inére are inside end -
chimnzys on both the cast anl west gables. L

Undexr the main bleck is a full ceilar in Flemish
bond briclh: Tfth~f:ﬁ? Tonms.  The attic has twe small rooms
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7. DESCRIPTINN, continued
= ~.:c-row belt course petsesn the first and second stories
znd a simple box corrnice along the gzble roof. There 1s an
e:;terior chimney on the west end and two small two-over two :
light windows in tne gable.

Kingston Hall is an interesting eighteentn century house
with simple but sophisticated exteriocr and interior Georgian
seriod detailing. The structure presents an interesting
combination of traditional construction with Georgian detailing

Kingston Hall has a four-room plan. The stair hall, in
the southeast corner, has a 1:>anel¢e'q wainscot and pave11ed
stair soffit. Ths graceful stairway has thin block-and-turned
balusters, three per tread, and scrolled stepends.

The northeast parlor is fully panelled. The fireplace
is framed by colonettes beneath panelled end blocks. Flanking
the fireplace are reeded pilasters.

The dining roocm and library are very similar. Both

rocms have plain wainscoting and molded cornices. Both corner
fireplaces are very plain.

The old kitchen, in the wing, has a large fireplace
with a brick segmental arch. The three exterior walls are
exposed brick. On the second floor a single-board partition
ceparates the stair hall from the bedroom. In this bedroom
is a small fireplace with a rather crudely formed arch. The
center voussoir is a brickbat. The small chamber south of
the stairhall has an opening in the ceiling leading to the
lec:z. The Goor from this chamber into the stair hall has a
crude iron nook instead of a latch.

An interesting feature on the property of Kingston Hall

is the brick, circular ice house Laid in ccrmon bond with
five rows of stretchers to one of headers, this ice house
has a high conical rocf with a wood finial at its peak.
§. SIGNIFICANCE, continued

By the turn of the nineteenth century Thomas King had
died; his daughter and son-in-law Fenrv James Carroll had
moved to Kingstcocn Hall, the birtnnlace of their son Thomas
ing Carrcli (1793-1873). Tne younger Carroll attended school
and rezd law éuring nisz parents occurancy ci the house. In
1218 after the death of Henryv James Car*oll ne assumad con-
trol of +he plantation. While in resicdence a:t XKingston Hall,
nis Zdauchter Anna Ella Carroll {(1R15-189%4) was born. During
‘the Civil ¥ay Miss Carrcll bascame a2 nationegl figure as a
prononent o the union and an unofficial advisor to Ehraham

{Sze ccntinuatior grzs1 Lo, 2 gro il7es

53
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Kingston Hall is an interesting, small late eightieenth
century house which presents an interesting combination of
stvles. The room arrangement with its corner fireplaces
and corner hall reflects the traditional »lan common to
the earlv decades of the century. 1Its exterior detail

artlcularlv the cornice: window treatment, and the orojectind!
Dedlmepted pavilion with the circular cable window is usually
associated with the mid-Georgian style. The mantles 1in
the northwest and southwest rooms and the woodwork in the
stair hall (southeast room) represents transitional style

from late Georgian into Federal.

Perhaps the most important architectural element 1is
the icehouse--one of the few known circular dependencies
in Marvland. Its preservation is important to the study ;

|
1

of domestic deDendenc1es as a part of our material culture.
The two-story elchteenth century kitchen is a second im-
portant dependency at Kingston Hall.

Kingston Hall's historic associations begin in the '
mid-eighteenth century when Robert King (d. 1755) owned
the propertv. The King family were large land owners
owing to the property ammassed by Robert King before he
moved to Accomak County, Virginia. His son, Nehimiah King ‘
built Beverley of Somerset (National Register) a 1790's
structure with a two-story central octagonal bay.

Thomas King, a grandson, obtained the tract Conclusion
as his inheritance and erected Kingston Hall. The property
located on an 860-acre plantation included "1 Dwelling house
built on Brick 40 feet by 2 stories high" and a "kitchen
built of brick 24 feet sguare 2 story hich,” a dairy house,
smoke house, stable, carriage house, and "a very old hen
house," a granary, 3 corn houses, a stable, a "Negro house,"

2 blacksmith shop, two barns, and three log houses occupied !
bv John Williams, William Carver and Levi Beauchamp.
(Source: the 1798 Federal Direct Tax Assessment, Somerset
County, Maryland.)

The listings for a granary (34' x 25') and a corn house
(20' % 8') indicate that King grew grain and not tobacco
the crop most commonly associated with eighteenth century
tidewater culture.

e __{Ces ~ontinuation sheet No. 1)
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Linco.n. Her plans for a land seic2 of Vicksburg, although
initizlly viewed skepticallyw, proved correct when the town
surrzndered in 1%953. ) )

ZHer father's brief (1830-1831) ternure in the Marvland
State House escaped nationral attention. Carroll began his
political caresr as a delegate (1816-1217) and then became
a juége first of the Levy court (1825-1326) and later of the
Orphans Court (1828-1829). During his year as governor,
Czrroll encouraged the imvprovement of the University of
Yarviandg, urged Congress to prcvide benefits for the veterans
cZ the Revolution, ané acdvocated penal reform. The Maryland
historian James H. Fitzc erald described Carroll as a politician
wnc aispenseé patronage_ freely and "patronized the spoils
concept of government."

Ir the 1820's the Circuit Court of Somerset Countyv had
decre=ed that Carrnll, then a jucdge of the Orphans Court,
owsd considerable debts to William Wiliiams. Although the suit

~~ 1is especially mentioned in the Som=rset County Land Records,
tha Circuit Court records vielded no information on the case.

Ir 1835 the Ctheriff of Scmexset County was empowered to
seil Carroll's oropertv toc payv his debis. The deed to John
Upshur Dennis includes the statemant "the said Thomas [arrol]]
is 2 convict of recoré." However, Carroll's shzdy reputation
rroved no hinderance to future political appecintments first
as & Marvland lottery commissioner and, in 1849, as Naval
Cificer oi Baltimore.

The new owner John Upbshur Dennis (d. 1851) introduced
another political L¢“11y to Kingston Hzll. Three menmbers of
the Zamily served in the House of Representatives, John -Upshur
Dennis' son, George Robertson Dennis (1822-1882), served in
the United States Sen ate. Senator Denrnnis inherited Xingston
Hdaill in 1851 where he had previously keen living after setting
s medical practice in a nezarby villaca. Eis jo_Ltical careexr
rzozn at the ctate level in tne Houce of Delegates and the
Senzte. He represented Marviand at the 1856 Whig convention
and the 18€8 Democratic convention. In 1873 Dsnnis entared
Lhe TEnate. Lis porticigpation in naticonz2l a2ffzire ococurred
during the disputel Tildern-Javes election [1876-1877). Dennis,
2l rnnugn a Democrat, suppodried Hayves in direct centradiction
vith the Blaix Pesoluticrs from thse state i=giszlature vhich
535,05 cel " T1I%en. -

SN *James . Fitzgerald Irewsr, "The Dunecratization of
' Marxvignd 1200-31327," The MG1d Line Stats, llorris L. RadoiIf ez.,
{(;imnazclis, 1571), . ol.
!Sez conTinueotion =-mzsi ol I eor FEETS
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of the two; therefore, his political career was termin
and he retired to Kingston Hall.
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DATE OR PERIOD Cas 1750
streeGeorgian
ARCHITECT

BUILDER

3. FOR LIBRARY OF CONGRESS USE

4. NOTABLE FEATURES, HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE AND DESCRIPTION

OPEN TO PUBLIC JiQ
W

Dingston Hall is locnted on the Annemessex Yiver which was
navignble by ship to this point in the eighteenth century.
The two-slory bricl house rests low, near the ground, and has
a water table on four eides, o belt coursze, and chirmeys at

eaxch muble end of an Y.\" roof,.
center of the facade is capped with a pedinment,

A narrow pavillion in the
The entrance

2oor is enhanced with o frame supporting a heavy pediment,

Jingle buys of windows flank the navillion,

oo

limestone.,

Yindows of the

iceade are covered with a wooden lintel painted to sirmulate

A low nhyphen allows passage from nmain house to a two-story

bricl: ving.

The builder, Col, Hobert Xing III, died in 1750 leaving the
mersion to his grandaoni Thomas ling, whose daughter married

Col, Henry James Carrol

of 5t, lary's County,

Their son, Y

Thonans ing Corroll, was Govermor of lMaryland 1820-~1831,

Governor Carroll'’s daughter, Anna Flla Cerroll (1815-1894)

woe intrigued with politizs and law,

She became an unofficial

- advisor to President Lincoln who relied upon her writings and
observations on several imvortant occassiona, notably her
report on proposed expedition of Federal forcee down the

Uigsiesippl agninst heavily fortified Southern positions,

Her

nivige changed stragety used at Vicksburg resulting in Northern

Succens,
T

at

5. PHYSICAL CONDITION OF STRUCTURE  Endangered

oond

interior

Good

Exterior

§ 6. LOCATION MAP (Plon Optioncl)

7. PHOTOGRAPH

3. PUBLISHED SOURCES {Author, Title, Poges)
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ETC.
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MHaryland Historical Trust

DATE OF RECORC




—  Anme i =
e L T -//
o~ =/ i

<47 N Tluures Chanel
/ =

- \ PR
N / [N

\d .
o, -







Kingston Hall S-63

Kingston vicinity, Somerset Co.,Md.
South Elevation

2/85, Paul Touart, Photographer
Neg./Md. Historical Trust






Kingston Hall S5-63
Kingston Vicinity, Somerset County
South Elevation:

11/85, Paul Touart, Photographer
Neg/Md. Historical Trust






S-63
Kingston Hall
Northwest Elevation of House
Near Kingston, Somerset County
4/84 Paul Touart
Neg./ Maryland Historie Trust
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Kingston Hall 5-63

Kingston Vicinity, Somerset County
Gabled Pavilion

South Elevation
]]/85, Paul Touart, Photographer
Neg/Md. Historical Trust
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Kingston Hall S-63

Kingston Vicinity, Somerset County
Front Door

South Elevation
11/85, Paul Touart, Photographer
Neg/Md. Historical Trust
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1. sTaTE Maryland
county Somerset County
TOWN vicinity Kingston
STREET NO.

ORIGINAL OWNER Col., Robert King, III
ORIGINAL USE Tce House
PRESENT OWNERAlbert Gunter

PRESENT USEAbandoned
WALL CONSTRUCTION Brick

NO. OF STORIES One

HISTORIC AMERICAN BUILDINGS SURVEY

INVENTORY S-634

2 name Ice House, Kingston Hall

pATE or PERIOO 18th Century

sTYLE Colonial
ARCHITECT

BUILDER

3. FOR LIBRARY OF CONGRESS USE

5. PHYSICAL CONDITION OF STRUCTURE Endangered Yes

4. NOTABLE FEATURES, HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE AND OESCRIPTION OPEN TO PUBLIC No

Small outbuildings of the 18th century are rapidly
disappearing. This round brick ice house with shingled,
conical roof is a unique survival on the grounds of
Kingston Hall (see S-63 data sheet). The ruinous condition
of the roof is warning that this structure needs attention.

Interier PoorT Exterlor Poor

SUPPLEMENTAL INFOKMATION AND PHO " )PHS MAY BE ADDED ON SHEET OF SAME SIZE

é 8- LOCATION MAP (Plon Optianal)

7. PHOTOGRAPH

g

3. PUBLISHEO SOURCES (Author, Title, Pages)

INTERVIEWS, RECOROS, PHOTOS, ETC. -

Maryland, A Guide to the Oldline
State, American Guide Series,
1940, p. 432

[9- NAME, ADORESS ANO TITLE OF RECOROER

Orlando Ridout, IV
Maryland Historical Trust

DATE OF REcore April 5, 1968
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Kingston Hall S-63
Kingston Vicinity, Somerset County

Ice House

11/85, Paul Touart, Photographer
Neg/Md. Historical Trust






S-63
Kingston Hall
North Elevation of Ice House
Near Kingston, Somerset County
4/84 Paul Touart
Neg./ Maryland Historic Trust



